Repornng

Services

- Earth Negotzatzons Bulletin CoP 9

A Reportmg Servzce for Envzronment and Development Negotzatlons
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/desert/cop9/

Vol. 4 No. 220

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Tuesday, 22 September 2009

UNCCD COP 9 HIGHLIGHTS:
MONDAY, 21 SEPTEMBER 2009

The ninth session of the Conference of the Parties (COP 9)
to the UN Convention to Combat Desertification (UNCCD)
opened in Buenos Aires, Argentina, during an afternoon
plenary meeting on Monday, 21 September 2009. The first
plenary meeting of the two-week session heard statements
from the outgoing and incoming Presidents of the COP
and representatives of regional groups, UN agencies and
intergovernmental organizations, and non-governmental
organizations.

OPENING PLENARY

José Antonio Gonzalez Martin, on behalf of the COP 8
President, Elena Espinosa Mangana, Spain’s Minister of
Environment, Rural and Marine Areas, welcomed delegates
to COP 9 and noted that the global economic crisis poses
new challenges for the UNCCD. He congratulated the first
Scientific Conference held under UNCCD auspices and noted
the Convention is on the right path to "scientific excellence,"
providing useful knowledge to anticipate future changes and
early warning. He highlighted that delegates have been called
to consider the functions of the Global Mechanism (GM)
and Committee for the Review of the Implementation of the
Convention (CRIC). He also noted support for the UNCCD
10-year Strategic Plan (the Strategy) by other UN bodies like the
UN Commission on Sustainable Development (CSD).

Delegates then elected Homero Bibiloni, Secretary of
Environment and Sustainable Development of Argentina, as
President of COP 9. Bibiloni welcomed participants and shared
his concerns about the consistent worsening of the situation of
poor people exposed to floods and droughts around the world.
He noted this is an historic moment in the Convention, with
a ten-year strategy ahead and a decade of experience, to turn
to on-the-ground implementation. He called for moving from
negotiating documents to providing solutions to poor farmers in
developing countries. He also called for renewed compromise
with an austere approach to assigning funds, strictly defined
central priorities, and consideration of future generations.

Sergio La Rocca, Under-Secretary of Planning and
Environmental Policy of Argentina, conveyed the personal
support of Argentina’s President to a positive outcome to the
meeting.

Luc Gnacadja, UNCCD Executive Secretary, recalled that
the UNCCD is the only international instrument that addresses
sustainable land and water management. He stressed that the
convergence of energy, food, financial and economic crises
must not deter further action to combat desertification. On
institutional arrangements, Gnacadja stressed that “we can’t be
doing the same thing, in the same way, and expect new results.”
He said COP 9 must advance the Strategy by creating an
improved institutional setting. He emphasized the need to deliver
a minimum set of indicators to assess and monitor progress in
implementing land management programmes at the national
and local levels. He expressed hope that the UNCCD’s first
Scientific Conference would provide relevant advice.

STATEMENTS BY PARTIES, AGENCIES AND
OBSERVERS: South Africa, on behalf of the G-77/CHINA,
noted the support for the UNCCD by the G-8 at its July 2009
Summit in L’Aquila, Italy. She said she looked forward to the
Global Environment Facility’s fifth replenishment, particularly
for the land degradation focal area. She stressed the need
to enhance the UNCCD'’s effective implementation by its
institutions, and urged uptake of the Joint Inspection Unit (JIU)
report on the GM. She supported the proposed budget and said
“the time is right” to establish regional offices in the regions.

Sweden, for the EU, highlighted sustainable land
management’s vital contribution to mitigating climate change
and adapting to its consequences in drylands. She said the
meeting should reinforce the potential of the UNCCD through
the effective implementation of the Strategy and added that
institutional issues should not distract delegates from this goal.
She looked forward to the contribution of the first Scientific
Conference and lamented that the dialogue with civil society was
not scheduled earlier in the agenda.

Chad, on behalf of the AFRICAN GROUP, said African
governments have adopted national action programmes (NAPs),
but noted multiple challenges in implementing them. He
highlighted the importance of operational complementarity,
clarity for the roles of the Secretariat and the GM, long-term
indicators and benchmarks, adoption of a realistic programme
and budget, and synergies among multilateral environmental
agreements.

Myanmar, for the ASIA GROUP, said NAPs need to be
reoriented with the Strategy and requested that this activity
be included in the next biennium’s activities. He said the
Asia Group supports a permanent regional office in Asia to
ensure regional coordination among stakeholders. He stressed

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Soledad Aguilar, Alexandra Conliffe, Laura Russo, Lynn Wagner, Ph.D., and
Kunbao Xia. The Digital Editor is Angeles Estrada. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James
“Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development — DFID), the
Government of the United States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government
of Canada (through CIDA), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal
Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the
Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government
of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry
of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of
Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (through the Global Industrial and
Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), the Government of Iceland, and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for translation of the Bulletin
into Spanish at this meeting has been provided by the Spanish Ministry of the Environment and Rural and Marine Affairs. Funding for translation of the Bulletin into French
at this meeting has been provided by the International Organization of the Francophonie (IOF). The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not
necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For
information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the Director of [ISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300
East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, United States of America. The ENB Team at UNCCD COP 9 can be contacted by e-mail at <lynn@jiisd.org>.




| Bepb[ﬁng
Services

Tuesday, 22 September 2009

Vol. 4 No. 220 Page 2

the linkage between climate change and desertification, land
degradation and drought (DLDD) and expressed hope that

this issue would be deliberated during the high-level segment
and forwarded to the UN Climate Change Conference in
Copenhagen. He said all major documents should be translated
into Arabic, and highlighted the importance of the issue of dust
and sand storms for this region.

Guyana, for the LATIN AMERICAN and CARIBBEAN
GROUP, stressed that the regional implementation annexes
are a significant part of the UNCCD, and stated that regional
meetings and consultations are critical for the Convention.

He said his Group: would like to make the CRIC a permanent
subsidiary body with a specific mandate, in line with provisions
of the Strategy; was concerned about the organization of the
first Scientific Conference and the limited participation of
scientists from the region; proposed electing the new CST Chair
in the opening plenary rather than at the conclusion of the CST,
as recommended by the CST Bureau; and recalled that the
Scientific Conference is supposed to be part of the CST.

UKRAINE, on behalf of Central and Eastern Europe
(CEE), said the global role of the UNCCD can be fulfilled
only if it addresses all manifestations of land degradation
and desertification in all regions. He said he hoped that COP
9 decisions would optimize the work of the GM and the
Secretariat, and confirm the role of the CRIC as one of the
Convention’s permanent subsidiary bodies. He highlighted
his expectations for the CST’s first Scientific Conference and
informed that the CEE would like to establish a regional office to
improve regional coordination.

The International Center for Agricultural Research in the
Dry Areas (ICARDA) and Dryland Science for Development
Consortium (DSD) stressed the need for: strong political will
and an enabling policy environment; the application of science
at local, national, regional and global levels; and sustainable
intensification of agricultural production systems.

The International Fund for Agricultural Development
(IFAD) highlighted its support of and contribution to dryland
development over its 30 years of operation. He explained that, in
cooperation with the GM, IFAD had developed a methodology to
account for its activities in relation to the UNCCD, and that this
methodology had been adopted by the World Bank and African
Development Bank. He said IFAD will support the evolution of
UNCCD bodies, including the GM, as discussed at COP 9.

UNDP welcomed progress to make the CST more effective
and recalled the support UNDP is giving to African countries
through the Integrated Drylands Development Programme
(IDDP), with donor support.

UNEDP highlighted the links between climate change, land
degradation and biodiversity loss. He said UNEP encourages
countries to see synergies among the three Rio Conventions
and stressed the importance of scientific collaboration, joint
reporting, holistic approaches to sustainable land management
and gender mainstreaming, among others. He mentioned the
potential synergies between land degradation and reducing
emissions from deforestation and forest degradation in
developing countries (REDD), and the GEF-funded Carbon
Benefits Project, conducted jointly by UNEP and the World
Agroforestry Centre (ICRAF).

The UN Framework Convention on Climate Change
(UNFCCC) Secretariat stated the importance of UNCCD COP 9
and its outcomes for the UNFCCC and recalled the key elements
of the post-Kyoto regime to emerge in Copenhagen, including
emission reduction, mitigation and adaptation. She mentioned

ongoing national-level efforts to integrate climate change and
land degradation, such as the National Adaptation Programmes
for Action and the NAPs. She stressed the importance of science
to provide a basis for decision making, both for mitigation and
adaptation issues.

The GM said the Joint Work Programme between the
Secretariat and the GM is growing in substance, quality and
quantity, and noted the need for the COP’s guidance on the
delineation of tasks and roles based on the distinct mandates
of the two institutions. He said the institutional setting of the
GM and the oversight function of the COP are spelled out in
the Convention text. He called for a broad-based process under
the UNCCD to identify future financial opportunities for the
Convention, such as innovations that the climate change process
has developed.

A representative of Civil Society Organizations (CSOs) said
the bottom-up approach has not materialized, and emphasized the
need to involve CSOs in NAP development and implementation.
He lamented that only 15 CSOs had received financing to
participate in the COP, and said other CSOs had not been able to
obtain visas to attend.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA AND ORGANIZATION
OF WORK: COP 9 President Bibiloni invited delegates
to consider the document on adoption of the agenda and
organization of work (ICCD/COP(9)/1/Rev.1). CANADA,
supported by NORWAY and the US, said the dialogue with
CSOs should take place during the first week. CHINA expressed
concern about the CSO dialogue. The Executive Secretary said
CSOs would be able to provide their views on each agenda item.

GUYANA asked when the election of the CST Chair would be
discussed. ARGENTINA said the CST Chair should be elected
during the opening plenary, and that Article 22 would need to be
amended if this were to be changed. The Secretariat noted that
the organization of work had been endorsed by the Bureau, but
the COP could amend it if it desired. BELARUS and the ASIA
GROUP supported electing the CST Chair immediately and
suspending the function until the end of CST 9.

NAMIBIA, supported by ZIMBABWE, suggested adding
water and the framework for water policy advocacy to the
agenda. BRAZIL asked for further discussion on how the high-
level segment would proceed. The meeting suspended at 6:30 pm
without a decision on the agenda.

IN THE CORRIDORS

As delegates left to attend the ‘vin d’honneur’ organized
by the Argentine hosts, many continued to talk about the
inconclusive plenary discussion on the agenda and programme of
work. Some pointed out that the Latin American and Caribbean
Group had made their position clear on the timing of the election
and seating of the CST Chair further to their preparatory meeting
in Montevideo. They considered the implications of that Group’s
concern that the Rules of Procedure should be changed prior to
deciding to delay when a newly elected CST Chair presides over
the CST. Others highlighted that it makes sense for the CST 8
Chair to remain until the end of the week, so as to preside over
CST 9 in order to ensure a successful conclusion to the first
Scientific Conference.

Some participants expressed hope that evening consultations
will allow a quick adoption of the agenda and programme of
work on Tuesday morning, noting that scientists filling the
observer section of the plenary hall are eager to open the first
Scientific Conference on Tuesday afternoon, as planned.




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


